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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

JULIA GOMEZ PERALTA,
Plaintiff,

V.

GBG USA INC.,

JOSEPH DAHAN,

and DOES 1 through 25,

inclusive,

Defendants.

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

a corporation;
an individual;

CASE NO.

BC699385

COMPLAINT FOR DAMAGES:

I. Sexual Harassment in

violation of Gov. Code
§12940 () (1)

[Fair Employment & Housing
Act]

IT. Retaliation in violation
of Gov. Code §12940 (h)

ITI. Gender Discrimination
in violation of Gov. Code
§12940 (a)

IV. Failure to Prevent
Sexual Harassment in
violation of Gov. Code
§12940 (k)

V. Wrongful Termination and
Retaliation in Violation of
Public Policy

VI. Intentional Infliction
of Emotional Distress

VII. Negligent Infliction of
Emotional Distress

VIII. Negligent Hiring,
Retention and Supervision

IX. Fraud
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X. Negligent
Misrepresentation

XI. Misrepresentation in
Violation of California Labor
Code 970

)

)

)

)

)

i

) XII. Violation of the

) California Equal Pay Act,

) California Labor Code §1197.5
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

XITII. Unfair Business
Practices in violation of
Gov. Code §§ 17200-17208

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED

Plaintiff, JULIA GOMEZ PERALTA complains and alleges as follows:
PARTIES

1. Plaintiff, JULIA GOMEZ PERALTA (hereinafter referred
to as “"MS. PERALTA”) was at all relevant times herein a resident
of the County of Los Angeles, State of California, except as
specifically stated herein.

2. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes, and based
thereon alleges, that Defendant, GBG USA INC. (hereinafter
“GBG”) is, and at all relevant times herein was, a corporation
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware
and doing substantial business in the County of Los Angeles,
State of California.

3. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes, and based
thereon alleges, that Defendant, GBG is, and at all relevant
times herein was doing business in the County of Los Angeles,
State of California under the name “Joe’s Jeans”. Defendant GBG
employs more than five employees and is an employer within the
meaning of Section 12926 of the California Government Céde.

4. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes, and based
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thereon alleges, phat Defendant, JOSEPH DAHAN aka JOE DAHAN
(hereinafter “Defendant DAHAN”) is an individual who at all
relevant times herein is and was a resident of the County of Los
Angeles, State of California.

5. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes, and based
thereon alleges, that at all relevant times herein Defendant
DAHAN was and is the founder, President and creative director of
Joe’s Jeans with the power to hire and fire employees or to
effectively recommend the hiring and firing of employees, and
had and has the power to set policies of Joe’s Jeans, a division
of defendant GBG, and also had and has substantial discretionary
authority over the vital aspects of the defendant GBG’s
business, including making significant decisions affecting and
enforcing company policy and hence is and was at all times
relevant was a managing agent of Defendant GBG.

6. The true names and capacities, whether individual,
associate or otherwise, of defendants sued herein as DOES 1
through 25, inclusive, are currently unknown to MS. PERALTA, who
therefore sues said defendants by such fictitious names.

7. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes, and based
thereon alleges that each of the defendants designated herein as
a DOE is legally responsible in some manner for the events and
happenings referred to herein, and caused injury and damage
proximately thereby to MS. PERALTA as alleged herein.

8. MS. PERALTA will seek leave of court to amend this
Complaint to show the true names and capacities of the

defendants designated herein as DOES when the same have been

ascertained.
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9. Whenever in this Complaint reference is made to
“defendants and each of them,” such allegation shall be deemed
to mean the acts of defendants acting individually, jointly
and/or severally.

10. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes, and based
thereon alleges, that at all times mentioned herein, each of the
defendants was the agent, servant and employee, co-venturer and
co-conspirator of each of the remaining defendants, and was at
all times herein mentioned, acting within the course, scope,
purpose, consent, knowledge, ratification and authorization of
such agency, employment, joint venture and conspiracy.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

11. Venue is proper in this judicial district, pursuant to
California Code of Civil procedure Section 395(a). The
defendants reside and/or transact business in the County of Los
Angeles, and are within the jurisdiction of this court for
purposes of service of process.

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

12. The Plaintiff, JULIA GOMEZ PERALTA (“MS. PERALTA”), 1is
a 32 year old female resident of California. In March 2016, MS.
PERALTA resided in Madrid, Spain where she had forged a career
as a successful clothing and accessories designer. In 2013, MS.
PERALTA accepted a position with El Corte Ingles, S.A. (“El
Corte Ingles”). By March 2016, MS. PERALTA had been promoted to
the position of El Corte Ingles’ senior designer of loungewear
and accessories with responsibility for the design and
development of loungewear, underwear, textiles, bags and small

leather goods. MS. PERALTA’s responsibilities also included
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researching trends with respect to the design of fashion
accessories with a focus on global sourcing and the development
of relationships with El Corte Ingles’ suppliers. El Corte
Ingles 1is headquartered in Madrid, Spain and is the largest,
most prestigious department store in Europe.

13. On March 24, 2016, MS. PERALTA, while working and
residing in Madrid, participated in an interview via Skype with
Defendant DAHAN. During the interview MS. PERALTA and Defendant
DAHAN discussed the possibility of her relocating to Los
Angeles, California and joining Joe’s Jeans, a company founded
and operated by Defendant DAHAN. Defendant DAHAN represented to
MS. PERALTA that should she be hired, she would assume the
position of Senior Designer for Joe’s Jeans. Defendant DAHAN
represented that the Senior Designer position would place her in
charge of the men’s collection team. Defendant DAHAN
represented that as the Senior Designer of the men’s collection
team, she would have the full time assistance of an associate
designer and an assistant technical designer.

14. During the interviéw, Defendant DAHAN informed MS.
PERALTA that the senior designer position would require her to
regularly travel to Europe and Asia for design inspiration.
Defendant DAHAN further informed MS. PERALTA that should she be
hired, she would report directly to him with respect to the
presentation of designs which would then subsequently be
developed under her direction by her design team.

15. At the time the interview occurred, MS. PERALTA
enjoyed long time employment with El Corte Ingles and led a team

of three designers. MS. PERALTA’s career trajectory indicated a
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succession of promotions with added increases in responsibility
and compensation.

16. In late March 2016, Hoss Hamidi, Defendant GBG’s
Senior Manager of Human Resources requested, through Jessica
Zelling, that MS. PERALTA come to Los Angeles at GBG’'s expense,
for another interview with Joe’s Jeans personnel. Jessica
Zelling was an account manager with 24 seven Inc., a recruiting
firm used by Defendant GBG.

17. On April 12, 2016, MS. PERALTA met with Mr. Hamidi and
Defendant DAHAN at the Petit Hermitage Hotel in Los Angeles.
During the meeting, Defendant DAHAN reaffirmed that should she
be hired, MS. PERALTA would be Joe’s Jeans’ senior designer of
the men’s collection in charge of a team of two full time
designers reporting to her, that she would report directly to
Defendant DAHAN, that she would be based in Los Angeles, and
that she would be required regularly to travel for design
inspiration and development.

18. Defendant DAHAN made each of the aforementioned
representations in the presence of Mr. Hamidi who never voiced
disapproval of anything Defendant DAHAN told MS. PERALTA.

19. After meeting with Mr. Hamidi and Defendant DAHAN, MS.
PERALTA returned to Madrid, Spain and resumed her work for El
Corte Ingles.

20. On April 14, 2016, MS. PERALTA received an offer of
employment from Mr. Hamidi on behalf of “GBG USA INC, a Global
Brands Group holding limited company.” The offer was set forth
in Mr. Hamidi’s correspondence dated April 12, 2016, and

forwarded to MS. PERALTA at her residence address in Madrid.
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Among other provisions, GBG offered MS. PERALTA a base salary of
$100,000.00 in addition to eligibility for annual bonuses, a
relocation bonus, benefits and paid time off. The offer recited
that MS. PERALTA’s title would be “Designer, (Men’s
Collection).” The offer also recited that MS. PERALTA would
directly report to Defendant DAHAN, the “Founder and Creative
Director” of the Joe’s Jeans division of GBG.

21. On or about April 14, 2016, based upon the Defendants’
representations and assurances, MS. PERALTA executed the offer
letter.

22. On May 16, 2016, after resigning from El Corte Ingles
and moving to Los Angeles, California, in reliance upon the
Defendants’ representations, MS. PERALTA reported to the Joe’s
Jeans facility for work. On May 18, 2016, Defendant DAHAN
instructed MS. PERALTA that an assistant technical designer and
an associate designer would work with her in the men’s
collection. However, defendant DAHAN also advised MS. PERALTA
not to discuss with the associate designer, Adam McGowan, the
requirement that Mr. McGowan report to MS. PERALTA. Defendant
DAHAN strangely told MS. PERALTA that Mr. McGowan would “get his
feelings hurt” if he knew that he was supposed to report to MS.
PERALTA. Defendant DAHAN further disclosed to MS. PERALTA that
she had to share the services of both Frankie Casillas, the
assistant technical designer, and the associate designer with
Nate Freeman, the Senior Designer of Denim, who had been hired
on the same week as MS. PERALTA. MS. PERALTA expressed her
dismay over Defendant DAHAN’s revelation inasmuch as Defendant

DAHAN had earlier informed her that she would be provided with
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the services of two full time designers should she accept GBG’s
offer of employment and move to Los Angeles. In response,
Defendant DAHAN reassured MS. PERALTA that the budget had been
approved for the hiring of another assistant technical designer
specifically and solely for MS. PERALTA. Defendant DAHAN also
told MS. PERALTA that “his group” was “unfocused” and “immature”
and that she needed to be, in his words, the “Mamma” in the
department in order to “create order” among the staff.

23. On her first day Mr. Hamidi gave MS. PERALTA a one-on-
one orientation presentation. At that time MS. PERALTA asked
again about the “Designer” title on her offer letter and Mr.
Hamidi said that it was the title that GBG used “internally” for
that position and that MS. PERALTA should not be concerned.
Thereafter and throughout her employment, MS. PERALTA held
herself out and was introduced by the Defendants as Joe’s Jeans
Senior Designer.

24. During the next ten months MS. PERALTA worked without
the support of the assistant technical designer who only worked
for Mr. Freeman. All the while, Defendant DAHAN continually
ignored MS. PERALTA’s requests for the promised assistant.
Moreover, the associate designer, Mr. McGowan, became and
remained hostile, uncooperative and confrontational with MS.
PERALTA and did little if any work under MS. PERALTA'’Ss
supervision.

25. On August 15, 2016, the sales team together with the
design team, as well as Defendant DAHAN and Suzy Bizant, the CEO
of Joe’s Jeans, traveled to Las Vegas for the most important

national trade show of the season. During the week, Defendant
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DAHAN took Mr. Freeman and Mr. McGowan to meetings with clients
and suppliers to explain changes and developments in the men’s
collection and lines. MS. PERALTA was never invited by
Defendant DAHAN to attend those meetings and was excluded from
participating in client development activities with Defendant
DAHAN.

26. In September 2016, Defendant DAHAN met with MS.
PERALTA together with Nate Freeman and Mr. McGowan. During the
meeting, Defendant DAHAN was loud, irate and intimidating.
Defendant DAHAN demanded to know why he had just found all of
the designers working separately. MS. PERALTA stated that
neither the technical designer Mr. Casillas, nor Mr. McGowan had
ever served as her assistants, as promised by Defendant DAHAN.
MS. PERALTA explained that Mr. McGowan continually rejected her
directives and failed to meet deadlines. Defendant DAHAN then
informed the assembled group that Mr. Freeman, the senior denim
designer, would henceforth oversee all aspects of the denim
collection and the men’s collection. Although MS. PERALTA asked
Defendant DAHAN to address the issues she had with the design
team, Defendant DAHAN ignored MS. PERALTA and stormed out of the
meeting. MS. PERALTA followed Defendant DAHAN into the public
area of the facility whereupon he turned on MS. PERALTA and, in
front of many of the employees of Joe’s Jeans, screamed at MS.
PERALTA and said, “this is my decision and you are not going to
tell me I can’t do it. If you don’t like it you can leave, you
choose!”

27. After being publicly and loudly humiliated, it became

apparent to MS. PERALTA that she would be further humiliated and
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fired if she questioned Defendant DAHAN on any matters
especially the representations and promises he made in order to
lure her from Madrid to Los Angeles.

28. MS. PERALTA attempted to understand why Mr. McGowan
consistently refused to take direction from her. MS. PERALTA
met with Mr. McGowan privately and encouraged him to open-up
about aﬁy issues he had with her. Mr. McGowan told MS. PERALTA
that prior to her hiring in March 2016, Defendant DAHAN gave him
an opportunity to transfer into the design department.

Moreover, Defendant DAHAN promised Mr. McGowan the position of
Senior Designer, Men’s Collection, in essence, the same position
MS. PERALTA was hired into by the Defendants. Mr. McGowan also
said that he was never told by anyone that he was not the Senior
Designer.

29. Two days after being publicly humiliated by Defendant
DAHAN, MS. PERALTA met with Shannon Sanders, Joe’s Jeans Human
Resources representative. MS. PERALTA informed Ms. Sanders that
she had been humiliated and harassed by Defendant DAHAN who had
never allowed her act in a managerial capacity, either expressly
or implied. MS. PERALTA informed Ms. Sanders that Defendant
DAHAN marginalized MS. PERALTA from the beginning of her
employment by excluding her from virtually every meeting he
called with the assistant designer who were supposed to be
reporting to MS. PERALTA, and that Defendant DAHAN had reneged
on virtually all the promises and representations made to her in
order to induce her to accept their employment offer.

30. Ms. Sanders assured MS. PERALTA that the conference

would be officially recorded after MS. PERALTA requested her to
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do so. MS. PERALTA told Ms. Sanders that she was afraid she
would lose her job if Defendant DAHAN knew that she had met with
human resources. Ms. Sanders told MS. PERALTA that her position
as a Senior Designer was not in danger and had unchanged in its
managerial responsibilities. While Ms. Sanders offered to set
up a meeting with Defendant DAHAN MS. PERALTA declined to meet
with him due to her fear of retaliation. As a result, Ms.
Sanders and MS. PERALTA agreed that MS. PERALTA would attempt to
resolve the issues with Defendant DAHAN by herself. Ms. Sanders
confirmed that she would indeed investigate MS. PERALTA’s
complaints concerning Defendant DAHAN’s conduct toward her and
make a written record of those complaints. MS. PERALTA is
informed and believes and based thereon alleges that at no time
did Ms. Sanders investigate her complaints nor did she make any
record of MS. PERALTA’s complaints.

31. MS. PERALTA also informed Ms. Sanders that MS. PERALTA
had been told that during the Las Vegas trade show during a
dinner party held after the trade show events, Defendant DAHAN
and the male members of the team openly discussed the use of
substances and other extracurricular activities, and that MS.
PERALTA therefore declined to attend the dinner. Instead she
opted to spend time with her relatives in Las Vegas. MS.
PERALTA told Ms. Sanders that she believed that her refusal
contributed to her further marginalization by Defendant DAHAN
and his male designers. Ms. Sanders informed MS. PERALTA that
when the team returned to Los Angeles, Defendant DAHAN told her
that MS. PERALTA was “too corporate and too structured” and

implied that she simply did not “fit in” with his team.
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32. Ms. Sanders also told MS. PERALTA that she knew of no
changes to MS. PERALTA’s position contrary to Defendant DAHAN’s
statement to the design team.

33. MS. PERALTA also met with Suzy Bizant, Joe’s Jeans
CEO, to seek her advice with respect to how to deal with
Defendant DAHAN’s harassment and marginalization. MS. PERALTA
informed Ms. Bizant of Defendant DAHAN’s conduct and Ms. Bizant
told MS. PERALTA that she was “shocked” by her revelations. Ms.
Bizant instructed MS. PERALTA to try and discuss the problems
with Defendant DAHAN and subsequently report back to her. Ms.
Bizant promised to keep the aforementioned conversation
confidential, however, MS. PERALTA is informed and believes and
on that basis alleges that Ms. Bizant failed to keep her promise
and instead, revealed the content of the conversation to
Defendant DAHAN.

34. Following Ms. Sanders’ instructions, MS. PERALTA
confronted Defendant DAHAN with her concerns. Surprisingly,
Defendant DAHAN acknowledged that MS. PERALTA was indeed his
Senior Designer that he was pleased with her work and promised
to support her managerial relationship with her design team.
Defendant DAHAN added that the change in the men’s team
structure was only for “certain meetings” and to not be too
concerned. Subsequently, MS. PERALTA reported back to Ms.
Sanders. MS. PERALTA told Ms. Sanders that she had received
Defendant DAHAN’s assurances and Ms. Sanders advised MS. PERALTA
to wait and see if things changed.

35. On November 21, 2016, following MS. PERALTA’s two week

bereavement leave in the wake of her father’s death, Mr. McGowan
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informed MS. PERALTA that Jennifer DeClark, the Vice-President
of Design and Merchandising, placed him solely in charge of a
new design project for the men’s collection. MS. PERALTA
subsequently asked Ms. DeClark if Mr. McGowan’s statement was
accurate. Ms. DeClark denied telling Mr. McGowan to work on the
design project without MS. PERALTA’S supervision.
Notwithstanding, Ms. DeClark’s denial, Mr. McGowan continued to
work on the new project and refused to take any direction from
MS. PERALTA.

36. After being informed by Ms. DeClark that Mr. McGowan
had misrepresented her directives, MS. PERALTA again met with
Ms. Sanders. MS. PERALTA informed Ms. Sanders that Defendant
DAHAN failed to resolve any of the issues they previously
discussed. Defendant DAHAN’s personal conduct toward MS.
PERALTA was still abhorrent and the design team promised to MS.
PERALTA was still not forthcoming. By this time Defendant DAHAN
had become much more dismissive with MS. PERALTA and would
ridicule her and undermine her in front of other colleagues more
frequently. This time, Ms. Sanders instructed MS. PERALTA that
Ms. DeClark would handle the situation with Mr. McGowan and
Defendant DAHAN. However, Ms. Sanders failed to address
Defendant DAHAN’s conduct.

37. Instead of seeing her work situation with her
subordinate employees addressed, MS. PERALTA became even more
marginalized and excluded from important design team events by
Defendant DAHAN. A second Las Vegas trip occurred in February
2017. During that trip, Defendant DAHAN requested Mr. Freeman

and Mr. McGowan to attend to present the men’s collection. MS.
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PERALTA was left behind in Los Angeles. MS. PERALTA
subsequently informed Ms. DeClark that she had again been
excluded from an important series of meetings and Mr. DeClark
apologized by saying that Defendant DAHAN had instructed her to
do so and there was nothing that she could do about it.

38. During MS. PERALTA’s first conference with Ms.
Sanders, MS. PERALTA characterized the work environment under
Defendant DAHAN as a “boys club.” Underlying the environment
created by Defendant DAHAN as the founder and creative director
of Joe’s Jeans was the guise of a “laid back” working
atmosphere. This atmosphere was perpetuated by Defendant DAHAN
and it created a culture within Joe’s Jeans which allowed
Defendant DAHAN to get away with pervasively harassing women
employees including MS. PERALTA. That atmosphere continued
unabated through 2016 and into 2017.

39. During MS. PERALTA’s conference with Ms. Sanders, she
provided the Human Resources representative with examples of
what she meant by the “boys club” environment, including that
she was excluded from numerous important client meetings by not
being invited to attend the trade show while the male designers
accompanied Defendant DAHAN to every important client meeting
and conference and evening event.

40. Shortly after MS. PERALTA began her employment,
Defendant DAHAN began hugging and inappropriately touching her.
MS. PERALTA noticed that Defendant DAHAN likewise
inappropriately touched other young, fit female employees.
Defendant DAHAN would constantly place his arms around MS.

PERALTA’ s shoulders near her breasts and around her waist in a
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coercive, unwelcome and seductive manner. MS. PERALTA felt
threatened by Defendant DAHAN’s actions and believed that if she-
complained, she would be publicly humiliated and lose her job.
Defendant DAHAN continued to perform these acts throughout the
entirety of MS. PERALTA’s employment.

41. Defendant DAHAN habitually made obscene comments to
MS. PERALTA concerning sexual relations. Throughout her
employment, Defendant DAHAN would enter the design work area and
initiate conversations with the male employees of the design
department which focused on various models’ physical attributes.
Defendant DAHAN encouraged the male designers to engage in
sexually focused jokes and banter. Inasmuch as MS. PERALTA was
the only female in the department, Defendant DAHAN conveniently
disregarded how uncomfortable such comments made MS. PERALTA and
encouraged MS. PERALTA’s male co-employees to target her as the
subject of their banter and jokes.

42. In June 2016, shortly after she was hired, Defendant
DAHAN asked MS. PERALTA if she was having sexual relations with
Mr. Freeman. MS. PERALTA was shocked and visibly offended by
Defendant DAHAN’s question.

43. Also in June 2016, during a fitting session, Defendant
DAHAN directed a model to try on various garments for fit
correction. Throughout the session, which was witnessed by MS.
PERALTA and attended other design employees, Defendant DAHAN
directed derogatory comments to the sessions’ production
assistant. When Defendant DAHAN loudly asked the assistant if
she was a member of the lesbian, gay, bisexual and transgender

community, the assistant became visibly embarrassed and left the

15
COMPLAINT

Complaint.Gomez.wpd




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27

28

session. Afterwards, Defendant DAHAN left the fitting session
and laughed in MS. PERALTA’s direction.

44, 1In November 2016, after MS. PERALTA returned to work
following the death of her father, Defendant DAHAN gave MS.
PERALTA an extremely tight and unwanted hug and said to her, “I
hope your Dad at least is having orgies in heaven.” MS. PERALTA
was thoroughly disgusted, embarrassed and appalled by the sexual
innuendo inherent in Defendant DAHAN’s obscene comments.

45. Although MS. PERALTA’s position as a Senior Designer
had no association with the women’s department of Joe’s Jeans,
Defendant DAHAN demanded that MS. PERALTA try on women’s tops
and bottom samples often in front of the entire office and at
times with only him. On at least one occasion, Defendant DAHAN
inappropriately touched MS. PERALTA on various parts of her body
depending upon what garments Defendant DAHAN ordered her to
wear.

46. The room where fittings took place had virtually no
private area where models could change. That area was simply a
small corner shielded by an inadequate curtain which provided
little if any privacy. Defendant DAHAN generally elected to
remain in the fitting room where he was in a position to watch
as models changed behind the flimsy curtain. On one occasion
when Defendant DAHAN ordered MS. PERALTA to try on clothing, he
remained in the room where he could watch her undress and dress.
Defendant DAHAN at that time stayed alone in the fitting room
when he ordered MS. PERALTA to act as a fitting model. On the
aforementioned occasion, Defendant DAHAN told MS. PERALTA that

he needed to “check” the back pockets and waistband of the
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garment she was made to wear. Defendant DAHAN proceeded to
inappropriately touch MS. PERALTA by touching her buttocks
claiming he was “measuring the pockets”. Defendant DAHAN then
proceeded to make a sexual comment about MS. PERALTA’s buttocks.
Defendant DAHAN never asked if he could touch MS. PERALTA.

47. In March 2017, Defendant DAHAN entered the design work
area and approached both MS. PERALTA and Mr. Freeman. Defendant
DAHAN stealthfully moved between MS. PERALTA and Mr. Freeman and
took out his smartphone. Defendant DAHAN then proceeded to show
Mr. Freeman numerous photographs of a naked woman performing
lurid sex poses in what Defendant DAHAN purported to be his
home. Defendant DAHAN framed the display in a way that forced
MS. PERALTA to view the photographs as well. MS. PERALTA became
visibly upset that she was made to observe Defendant DAHAN'’s
display.

48. Shortly thereafter, MS. PERALTA was informed by
Defendant GBG that she was laid off as part of a
“restructuring.” MS. PERALTA was informed that the
restructuring was eliminating many positions throughout Joe’s
Jeans. However, after MS. PERALTA was informed that she was
laid off as part of the restructuring, Defendant DAHAN informed
her that she was “fired” because she was not a “good fit.”

49. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes and based thereon
alleges that Mr. McGowan was retained by Joe’s Jeans and assumed
her former position and also received the technical assistant
which was originally promised to MS. PERALTA but never provided.
Hence, MS. PERALTA’s position was never actually eliminated.

Moreover, inasmuch as Ms. Sanders and Ms. DeClark assured MS.
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PERALTA that her performance had nothing to do with the decision
to eliminate her position, it was clear to her that Defendant
DAHAN retaliated against her.

50. After being terminated, it became apparent to MS.
PERALTA that the representations and promises Defendant DAHAN
made in order to lure her from Madrid to Los Angeles were false.

51. As hereinabove alleéed, MS. PERALTA began her
employment with the Joe’s Jeans division of GBG on the same week
as Mr. Freeman, the Senior Designer of Men’s Denim began his
employment. Mr. Freeman’s position was parallel to MS.
PERALTA’s position inasmuch as both were Seﬁior Design positions
with the same managerial responsibilities. At the time both
were employed, Mr. Freeman shared his offer letter with MS.
PERALTA. However, Mr. Freeman’s annual salary was listed as
$135,000.00, $35,000 more than MS. PERALTA.

52. On August 30, 2017, MS. PERALTA filed an
administrative charge of discrimination with the California
Department of Fair Employment and Housing (DFEH). A true and
correct copy of the Charge is attached to this Complaint as
Exhibit A and is incorporated herein by this reference. MS.
PERALTA has received a Notice of Right to sue from the DFEH. A
true and correct copy of the Notice is attached to this
Complaint as Exhibit B and is incorporated herein by this
reference.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

SEXUAL HARASSMENT IN VIOLATION OF
FAIR EMPLOYMENT AND HOUSING ACT

(Against Defendants GBG, DAHAN, and Does 1-25)
18
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53. MS. PERALTA realleges and incorporates by reference
paragraphs 1 through 52, inclusive, of this Complaint as if
fully set forth herein.

54. Beginning in or about May 2016, Defendant DAHAN, while
acting in the course and scope of his employment with GBG, and
DOES 1 through 10, sexually harassed, and discriminated against
MS. PERALTA as alleged herein. The harassment was sufficiently
pervasive and severe as to alter the conditions of MS. PERALTA's
employment and to create a hostile, intimidating, and abusive
work environment. Defendants' acts of sexual harassment
included, without limitation, the following:

a. Defendant DAHAN's unwelcome sexual comments
towards MS. PERALTA, which at all times were initiated by
Defendant DAHAN and were unwelcome, uninvited, non-consensual in
nature and were against MS. PERALTA's will.

b. Defendants created and allowed a sexually hostile
environment to exist for MS. PERALTA including unwelcome sexual
advances and verbal and physical sexual harassment by Defendant
DAHAN.

C. All the conduct described in the Factual
Background portion of this Complaint.

55. The sexual harassment against MS. PERALTA by Defendant
DAHAN was condoned, permitted and encouraged by GBG and DOES 1
through 10, and each of them, in a manner which was grossly
negligent, reckless, willful, malicious and deliberately
indifferent to the MS. PERALTA’s personal rights to a
discrimination free work environment and safety in the work-

place. GBG and Does 1 through 10 failed to prevent sexual
19

COMPLAINT

Complaint.Gomez.wpd




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

harassment from occurring in the work-place.

56. The acts and conduct of Defendants, and each of them,
as aforesaid, were in violation of California Government Code
Section 12940 et seq. Said statutes impose certain duties upon
Defendants, and each of them, concerning discrimination and
harassment against persons, such as the MS. PERALTA, on the
basis of gender. Said statutes were intended to prevent the type
of injury and damage set forth herein. MS. PERALTA was, at all
times herein mentioned, a member of the class of persons
intended to be protected by said statutes. At all times herein
mentioned, MS. PERALTA was a person of the female gender and
therefore entitled to the protection of California Government
Code Section 12940 et seq.

57. As a direct and legal result of Defendants' willful,
wanton, intentional, malicious and/or reckless conduct and the
policies alleged herein, MS. PERALTA suffered severe and extreme
mental and emotional distress, including but not limited to
anguish, humiliation, embarrassment, loss of confidence, fright,
depression and anxiety, the exact nature and extent of which are
not now known to her. MS. PERALTA does not at this time know
the exact duration or permanence of said injuries, but is
informed and believes, and thereon alleges, that some of the
injuries are reasonably certain to be permanent in character.

By the aforesaid acts and omissions of defendants, and each of
them, MS. PERALTA has been directly and legally caused to suffer
damages as alleged herein.

58. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes and thereon

alleges that the Defendants, and each of them, by the acts of
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its managing agents, officers and/or directors in performing
and/or ratifying such acts, engaged in willful, malicious,
intentional, oppressive and despicable conduct, and acted with
willful and conscious disregard of the rights, welfare and
safety of MS. PERALTA, thereby justifying the award of punitive
and exemplary damages, against Defendants in an amount to be
determined at trial.

59. As a result of Defendants' discriminatory acts as
alleged herein, MS. PERALTA is entitled to reasonable attorney's
fees and costs of said suit as provided by Cal. Govt. Code
Section 12965(b).

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

UNLAWFUL RETALIATION IN VIOLATION OF GOV. CODE §12940 (h)
(Against Defendant GBG and Does 1-25)

60. MS. PERALTA hereby incorporates by reference
Paragraphs 1 through 52 of this Complaint as if fully set forth
herein.

6l. At all times herein mentioned, Government Code Section
12940 et seq. was in full force and effect and was binding upon
Defendants and each of them. Said statute imposes certain duties
upon Defendants, concerning discriminafion, harassment and
retaliation against persons, such as MS. PERALTA, on the basis
of gender or complaints of sexual discrimination or harassment.
Said statutes were intended to prevent the type of injury and
damage set forth herein. MS. PERALTA was, at all time herein
mentioned, a member of the class of persons intended to be
protected by said statutes. As alleged above, MS. PERALTA was

retaliated against after she conveyed her reasonable concerns
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that Defendant DAHAN was acting in an unlawful manner. Among
other things, MS. PERALTA was unfairly treated more harshly than
her co-workers, threatened with termination and humiliated and
harassed as herein alleged.

62. On multiple occasions, MS. PERALTA opposed the
harassing behavior of Defendant DAHAN to Ms. Sanders. 1In
response to her complaints, MS. PERALTA is informed and believes
and based thereon alleges that Ms. Sanders did nothing; instead
of acting upon MS. PERALTA’s complaints, Ms. Sanders failed to
investigate Defendant DAHAN’s conduct, failed to counsel
Defendant DAHAN, failed to protect MS. PERALTA and allowed
Defendant DAHAN and his “boys club” to continue to harass and
marginalize MS. PERALTA all of which ultimately led to
Defendants terminating the employment of MS. PERALTA.

63. As a direct, foreseeable, and legal result of
Defendants' discriminatory, harassing and retaliatory acts, MS.
PERALTA has suffered losses in earnings, attorney's fees and
costs of suit and has suffered and continues to suffer physical
pain, humiliation, embarrassment, mental and emotional distress,
and discomfort, all to her damage in an amount in excess of the
minimum jurisdiction of this Court, the precise amount of which
will be proven at trial.

64. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes and thereon
alleges that the Defendants, and each of them, by the acts of
its managing agents, officers and/or directors in the
aforementioned acts and/or ratifying such acts, engaged in
willful, malicious, intentional, oppressive and despicable

conduct, and acted with willful and conscious disregard of the
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rights, welfare and safety of MS. PERALTA, thereby justifying
the award of punitive and exemplary damages, against Defendant
GBG and DOES 1-10, in an amount to be determined at trial.

65. As a result of Defendants' discriminatory acts as
alleged herein, MS. PERALTA is entitled to reasonable attorneys'
fees and costs of said suit as provided by California Government
Code Section 12965 (b).

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

GENDER DISCRIMINATION IN VIOLATION OF
GOVERNMENT CODE §12940 (a)
(Against Defendant GBG and Does 1-25)

66. MS. PERALTA hereby incorporates by reference
Paragraphs 1 through 52 of this Complaint as if fully set forth
herein.

67. At all times herein mentioned, Government Code Section
12940 et seq. was in full force and effect and was binding upon
Defendants. Said statute imposes certain duties upon Defendants
concerning discrimination, harassment and wrongful discharge
against persons, such as MS. PERALTA, on the basis of gender or
complaints of sexual discrimination or harassment. Said statutes
were intended to prevent the type of injury and damage set forth
herein. MS. PERALTA was,\at all time herein mentioned, a member
of the class of persons intended to be protected by said
statutes.

68. As alleged herein, GBG intentionally created and
knowingly permitted egregious sexual harassment and retaliation
against MS. PERALTA as hereinabove alleged. MS. PERALTA’Ss

termination constitutes discrimination based on sex and violated
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Government Code Section 12940 (a).

69. As a direct, foreseeable, and legal result of
Defendants' discriminatory, harassing and retaliatory acts, MS.
PERALTA has suffered losses in earnings, attorney's fees and
costs of suit and has suffered and continues to suffer physical
pain, humiliation, embarrassment, mental and emotional distress,
and discomfort, all to her damage in an amount in excess of the
minimum jurisdiction of this Court, the precise amount of which
will be proven at trial.

70. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes and thereon
alleges that the Defendants, and each of them, by the acts of
its managing agents, officers and/or directors in the
aforementioned acts and/or ratifying such acts, engaged in
willful, malicious, intentional, oppressive and despicable
conduct, and acted with willful and conscious disregard of the
rights, welfare and safety of MS. PERALTA, thereby justifying
the award of punitive and exemplary damages, against Defendants,
in an amount to be determined at trial.

71. As a result of Defendants' discriminatory acts as
alleged herein, MS. PERALTA is entitled to reasonable attorneys'
fees and costs of said suit as provided by California Government
Code Section 12965(b).

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

FAILURE TO PREVENT DISCRIMINATION AND HARASSMENT
IN VIOLATION OF GOVERNMENT CODE §129409 (k)
(Against Defendant GBG and Does 1-25)
72. MS. PERALTA hereby incorporates by reference

Paragraphs 1 through 52 of this Complaint as if fully set forth
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herein.

73. In violation of Government Code §12940 (k), Defendants
failed to take all or any reasonable steps necessary to prevent
discrimination and harassment from occurring including:

a. With respect to sex harassment, Defendants either
had no policy or had a policy that was ineffective;

b. With respect to the handling of complaints of
discrimination, harassment and retaliation, Defendants had in
place either no procedures or ineffective procedures;

C. Defendants either failed to implement whatever
policies, practices and procedures might have been in existence,
or failed to implement any such policies, practices and
procedures in an effective manner.

74. At all relevant time periods, Defendants failed to
make an adequate or any response to the harassing conduct
described above and thereby established a policy, custom,

practice or usage, which condoned, encouraged, tolerated,
sanctioned, ratified, approved of, and/or acquiesced in
harassment against women employees, including, but not limited
to, MS. PERALTA.

75. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes, and thereon
alleges, that during all relevant time periods, Defendants
failed to provide any or adequate training and education to
their personnel and most particularly to management and
supervisory personnel regarding their discrimination and
harassment policies and procedures. Defendants knew or
reasonably should have known that such failure would result in

discrimination and/or harassment against women employees,
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including, but not limited to, MS. PERALTA. Such failure on the
part of the Defendants constituted deliberate indifference to
the rights of women employees, including, but not limited to,
MS. PERALTA under Government Code § 12940 (k).

76. Defendants' failure to prevent and/or stop the
harassment described herein compounded and exacerbated the
injuries MS. PERALTA was already suffering as a result of the
unlawful conduct described above. As a proximate result of
Defendants conduct as described more fully above, MS. PERALTA
suffered economic damages, including lost earnings, noneconomic
damages, including, without limitation, physical pain,
humiliation, embarrassment and discomfort, physical and mental
emotional distress and anguish, all to
MS. PERALTAs damages in an amount to be proven at trial but in
excess of the jurisdictional threshold of this court.

77. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes and thereon
alleges that the Defendants, and each of them, by the acts of
its managing agents, officers and/or directors in thé
aforementioned acts and/or ratifying such acts, engaged in
willful, malicious, intentional, oppressive and despicable
conduct, and acted with willful and conscious disregard of the
rights, welfare and safety of MS. PERALTA, thereby justifying
the award of punitive and exemplary damages, against Defendant
GBG and DOES 1-10, in an amount to be determined at trial.

78. As a result of Defendants' acts as alleged herein, MS.
PERALTA is entitled to reasonable attorneys' fees and costs of
suit as provided in Section 12965(b) of the California

Government Code.
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FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

WRONGFUL TERMINATION IN VIOLATION OF PUBLIC POLICY
(Against Defendant GBG and Does 1-25)

79. MS. PERALTA hereby incorporates by reference
Paragraphs 1 through 52 of this Complaint as if fully set forth
herein.

80. At all times during her employment with Defendants,
MS. PERALTA performed her duties with the utmost diligence and
competence.

81. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes and thereon:
alleges that Defendants' decisions to harass and discriminate
against her and ultimately to terminate her employment, as
alleged herein, were motivated by MS. PERALTA’s gender, her
complaints regarding Defendant DAHAN’s misrepresentations and
her complaints of sexual harassment and discrimination. MS.
PERALTA is further informed and believes and thereon alleges
that any other reasons proffered by Defendants were and are
pretextual in nature. Defendants intentionally created the
aforementioned pervasive environment of discrimination,
harassment, intimidation and retaliation.

82. By reason of the aforementioned conduct and
circumstances, Defendants, and each of them, violated the
fundamental public policies of the State of California, as set
forth in Section 12940 of the Government Code and California
Constitution which mandate that employees be free from unlawful
discrimination, harassment and retaliation. As a further result
of the aforesaid conduct of Defendants, and each of them, MS.

PERALTA has Defendant DAHAN deprived of her right to a work
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environment free from discrimination, harassment and
retaliation.

83. By the aforesaid acts and omissions of Defendants, MS.
PERALTA has been directly and legally caused to suffer the harm
and damages alleged herein.

84. MS. PERALTA is informed and believes and thereon
alleges that Defendants, and each of them, committed the acts
alleged herein maliciously, fraudulently, and oppressively, with
the wrongful intention of injuring MS. PERALTA and acted with an
improper and evil motive amounting to malice, and in conscious
disregard of MS. PERALTA’s rights. Because the acts taken
towards MS. PERALTA were carried out by managerial employees
acting in a despicable, deliberate, cold, callous and
intentional manner in order to injure and damage MS. PERALTA,
MS. PERALTA is entitled to recover punitive damages from the
individual defendants in an amount according to proof.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
(Against Defendants GBG and Does 1-25)

85. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 52
are incorporated herein by reference.

86. The conduct of Defendants’ management employees as set
forth above was so extreme and outrageous that it exceeded the
boundaries of human decency and was beyond pale of conduct
tolerated in a civilized society. Defendants misrepresented the
kind and character of the work they persuaded MS. PERALTA to
take, thereby causing her to leave a secure managerial position

in Spain and move to Los Angeles where she was alone and
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unsupported by family and friends. Once she was employed by
defendénts, MS. PERALTA was subjected to continual harassment,
degradation, marginalization, discrimination, and humiliation
until she was wrongfully terminated and replaced by a male
employee who was promised by her supervisor to have been her
assistant designer. Ultimately because of her complaints to the
Defendants’ ineffectual human resources representative, she was
terminated and abandoned without resources in the United States.
This conduct was intended to cause severe emotional distress, or
was done in reckless disregard of the probability of causing
severe emotional distress.

87. As an actual and proximate result of Defendants’
unlawful actions, MS. PERALTA has suffered and continues to
suffer severe continuous emotional distress, humiliation,
physical and mental pain and anguish, all to her damage in an
amount according to proof at the time of trial.

88. Defendants committed the acts alleged herein
maliciously, acts alleged herein maliciously, fraudulently, and
oppressively, with the wrongful intention of injuring MS.
PERALTA and acted with an improper and evil motive amounting to
malice, and in conscious disregard of MS. PERALTA’s rights.
Because the acts taken towards MS. PERALTA were carried out by
Defendants acting in a deliberate, cold, callous, and
intentional manner in order to injure and damage MS. PERALTA,
MS. PERALTA is entitled to recover punitive damages from the
individual defendants in an amount according to proof.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

NEGLIGENT INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
29
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(Against Defendants GBG and Does 1-25)

89. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 52
are incorporated heréin by
reference.

90. As an employee of Defendants, MS. PERALTA was owed a
duty of due care by Defendants, and each of them, to ensure that
MS. PERALTA was not exposed to foreseeable harms.

91. Defendants, and each of them, knew, or should have
known, that MS. PERALTA was being subjected to sexual
harassment, humiliation, discrimination and retaliation, and
that, by failing to exercise due care to prevent Defendant DAHAN
from engaging in a sexually harassing, discriminatory and
humiliating retaliatory course of conduct could and would cause
MS. PERALTA to suffer severe emotional distress.

92. Defendants, and each of them, failed to exercise their
duty of due care to prevent their employees, managers,
supervisors and/or officers from sexually harassing,
humiliating, discriminating and retaliating against MS. PERALTA.

93. As a direct and proximate result of the acts and
conduct of Defendants, and each of them, as aforesaid, MS.
PERALTA has Defendant DAHAN caused to and did suffer and
continues to suffer severe and extreme mental and emotional
distress, including but not limited to anguish, humiliation,
embarrassment, loss of confidence, fright, depression and
anxiety, the exact nature and extent of which are not now known
to her. MS. PERALTA does not know at this time the exact
duration or permanence of said injuries, but is informed and

believes and thereon alleges that some if not all of the
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injuries are reasonably certain to be permanent in character.

94. By the aforesaid acts and omissions of Defendants, and
each of them, MS. PERALTA has Defendant DAHAN directly and
legally caused to suffer damages as alleged herein.

EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION

NEGLIGENT HIRING RETENTION & SUPERVISION
(Against Defendant GBG and Does 1-25)

95. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 52
are incorporated herein by reference.

96. Upon information and belief, GBG, by and through its
agents and employees, knew or reasonably should have known
through reasonable investigation of Defendant DAHAN's propensity
for unlawful sexually harassing and physically aggressive and
demeaning behavior.

97. GBG had a duty to refrain Defendant DAHAN from his
wrongful, dangerous, and sexually depraved propensities, and to
provide reasonable supervision of Defendant DAHAN.

98. GBG negligently retained and/or failed to adequately
supervise Defendant DAHAN in his position of authority at Joe’s
Jeans, where Defendant DAHAN was able to commit the wrongful
acts complained of herein against MS. PERALTA. GBG failed to
provide reasonable supervision of Defendant DAHAN despite
knowing of Defendant DAHAN's propensities and complaints made
against him.

99. As a result of the above-described conduct, MS.
PERALTA has suffered, and continues to suffer, great pain of
mind and body, shock, emotional distress, embarrassment, loss of

self-esteem, disgrace, humiliation and loss of enjoyment of
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life.

100. GBG engaged in these acts alleged herein and/or
condoned, permitted, authorized, and/or ratified the conduct of
its employees and agents and is vicariously liable for the
wrongful conduct of its employees and agents for this cause of
action.

NINTH CAUSE OF ACTION

FRAUD
(Against Defendant GBG and Does 1-25)

101. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 52
are incorporated herein by reference.

102. Defendant GBG misrepresented to MS. PERALTA that she
would be a senior designer with managerial responsibilities in
charge of the men’s collection for Joe’s Jeans. Further, GBG
misrepresented to MS. PERALTA that she would be the manager of
an associate designer and an assistant technical designer who
would work full time under her supervision, if she were to
accept GBG’s offer of employment and move from Madrid, Spain to
Los Angeles, California.

103. Defendant GBG’s misrepresentations were material. At
the time GBG made the aforementioned representations to MS.
PERALTA she enjoyed long time employment with El Corte Ingles,
leading a team of three designers with a career trajectory
indicating a succession of promotions with added increases in
responsibility and compensation.

104. MS. PERALTA would not have been induced to accept
GBG's offer of employment had GBG not made the representations

alleged herein order to induce her to move from Madrid, Spain to
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Los Angeles, California.

105. Defendant GBG intended to induce MS. PERALTA to rely
upon its misrepresentations. At the time Defendant GBG made the
aforementioned misrepresentations it knew that the senior
designer position offered to MS. PERALTA had also been offered
to another employee of the Joe’s Jeans division of GBG. That
offer to the other employee had never been retracted. Further,
Defendant GBG knew that budget constraints prevented the hiring
of the staff promised to MS. PERALTA. Defendant GBG had reason
to expect that MS. PERALTA would rely upon the
misrepresentations that it made to her.

106. MS. PERALTA reasonably relied upon the
misrepresentations Defendant GBG made.

107. MS. PERALTA was justified in relying upon Defendant
GBG’s representations.

108. MS. PERALTA has been substantially harmed by Defendant
GBG's misrepresentations inasmuch as she left secure employment
in Madrid, Spain and moved to Los Angeles, California thereby
sustaining the damages alleged herein.

TENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
NEGLIGENT MISREPRESENTATION
(Against Defendant GBG and Does 1-25)

109. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 52
are incorporated herein by reference.

110. Defendant GBG misrepresented to MS. PERALTA that she
would be a senior designer with managerial responsibilities in
charge of the men’s collection for Joe’s Jeans. Further, GBG

misrepresented to MS. PERALTA that she would be the manager of
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an aésociate designer and an assistant technical designer who
would work full time under her supervision, if she were to
accept GBG’'s offer of employment and move from Madrid, Spain to
Los Angeles, California.

111. Defendant GBG’s misrepresentations were material. At
the time GBG made the aforementioned representations to MS.
PERALTA she enjoyed long time employment with El Corte Ingles,
leading a team of three designers with a career trajectory
indicating a succession of promotions with added increases in
responsibility and compensation.

112. MS. PERALTA would not have been induced to accept
GBG’s offer of employment had GBG not made the representations
alleged herein order to induce her to move from Madrid, Spain to
Los Angeles, California.

113. Defendant GBG intended to induce MS. PERALTA to rely
upon its misrepresentations. At the time Defendant GBG made the
aforementioned misrepresentations, it knew or should have known
that the senior designer position offered to MS. PERALTA had
also been offered to another employee of the Joe’s Jeans
division of GBG. That offer to the other employee had never
been retracted. Further, Defendant GBG knew or should have
known that budget constraints prevented the hiring of the staff
promised to MS. PERALTA. Defendant GBG had reason to expect
that MS. PERALTA would rely upon the misrepresentations that it
made to her.

114. MS. PERALTA reasonably relied upon the
misrepresentations Defendant GBG made.

115. MS. PERALTA was justified in relying upon Defendant
34
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GBG's representations.

116. MS. PERALTA has been substantially harmed by Defendant
GBG’'s misrepresentations inasmuch as she left secure employment
in Madrid, Spain and moved to Los Angeles, California thereby
sustaining the damages alleged herein.

ELEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION

MISREPRESENTATION IN VIOLATION OF CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE $§970
(Against Defendant GBG and Does 1-25)
117. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 52
are incorporated herein by reference.
118. California Labor Code Section 970 provides, in

relevant part, that:

“No person, or agent or officer thereof, directly or

indirectly, shall influence, persuade, or engage any person

to change from one place to another in this State or from

anyplace outside to anyplace within the State, or from

anyplace within the State to anyplace outside, for the

purpose of working in any branch of labor, through or by

means of knowingly false representations, whether spoken,

written, or advertised in printed form, concerning either:

(a) the kind, character or existence of such work; (b) the

length of time such work will last, or the compensation

therefore .- i

119. As alleged herein, Defendant GBG knowingly made false
statements to induce MS. PERALTA to relocate from Madrid, Spain
to Los Angeles, California for work. MS. PERALTA relied upon
Defendant GBG’s representations as herein alleged and moved from

Madrid, Spain to Los Angeles, California to pursue employment
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with Defendant GBG.

TWELFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

VIOLATION OF THE CALIFORNIA EQUAL PAY ACT
(Against Defendant GBG and Does 1-25)

120. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 52 are
incorporated herein by reference.

121. During her employment by Defendant GBG, from May 16,
2016 through and including April 3, 2017, MS. PERALTA was paid
an annual salary of $100,000, paid semi-monthly in the sum of
$4,166.67.

122. MS. PERALTA was classified as the “Designer (Men’s
Collection)” reporting to Defendant DAHAN, for the Joe’s Jeans
division of Defendant GBG.

123. MS. PERALTA at all times during the course of her
employment, has performed work equal in skill, effort and
responsibility and performed under similar working conditions to
the work of certain male employees of Defendant GBG, including
but not limited to Nate Freeman, the designer of denim for the
Joe’s Jeans division of Defendant GBG, who was paid a higher
annual wage, equal to $135,000, paid semi-monthly in the sum of
$5,625.00. This constitutes a violation of the California Labor
Code Section 11975.

THIRTEENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
UNFAIR BUSINESS PRACTICES IN VIOLATION OF
CALIFORNIA BUSINESS AND PROFESSIONS CODE §§ 17200-17208
(Against Defendant GBG and Does 1-25)
124. The allegations set forth in paragraphs 1 through 52 are

incorporated herein by reference.
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125. The foregoing conduct, as alleged, violates the
California Unfair Competition Law (“UCL”), Cal. Bus. & Prof.
Code § 17200 et seqg. Section 17200 of the Cal. Bus. & Prof.
Code prohibits unfair competition by prohibiting, inter alia,
any unlawful or unfair business acts or practices.

126. Through the course of MS. PERALTA’s employment,
Defendants committed acts of unfair competition, as defined by
UCL, by, among other things, engaging in the acts and practices
described herein, including but not limited to discrimination
against her on the basis of her gender, retaliating against her
for complaining abouf harassment and engaging in discrimination
with respect to equal pay and by terminating her employment
after her complaints. Defendants’ conduct as herein alleged has
damaged Plaintiff by wrongfully denying her earned wages and
equity, and therefore was substantially injurious to the
Plaintiff.

127. Defendants’ course of conduct, acts, and practices in
violation of the California laws mentioned in the above
paragraph constitutes a separate and independent violation of
the UCL. Defendants’ conduct described herein violates the
polity or spirit of such laws or otherwise significantly
threatens or harms competition.

128. MS. PERALTA seeks disgorgement in the amount of the
respective unpaid wages and equity and such other legal and
equitable relief from Defendants’ unlawful and willful conduct
as the Court deems just and proper.

PRAYFER

Wherefore, Plaintiff, JULIA GOMEZ PERALTA prays for judgment
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against Defendants, and each of them, as follows:

1. For general damages, according to proof, on each cause
of action for which such damages are available;

2. For special damages, according to proof, on each cause
of action for which such damages are available;

3. For compensatory damages, according to proof, on each
cause of action for which such damages are available;

4. For punitive damages, according to proof, on each cause

of action for which such damages are available;

5. For declaratory and injunctive relief;

6. For prejudgment and post-judgment interest according to
law;

7. For reasonable attorney’s fees incurred in this action

on those causes of action for which such fees are recoverable
under law;

8. For costs of suit including costs associated with the
retention of expert witnesses as such are incurred in this
action; and

9. For such other and further relief as the court deems
just and proper.

March 22, 2018 'ROSS & MORRISON

By:

Gary B. Ross
Andrew D. Morrison
Attorneys for Plaintiff
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